

POLICY REVIEW COMMITTEE

Mike McDonough, Assistant Superintendent Friday, September 21, 2018, 9:30 AM, Central Office

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Heather Keck, President, Board of Education Lisa Whiting, Member, Board of Education Brian Wilson, Treasurer/CFO Mike McDonough, Deputy Superintendent Vicky Clark, Assistant Superintendent Herb Higginbotham, Director Elementary Education Stacie Raterman, Communications Director Aaron Cookson, Principal Hilliard Davidson HS Matthew Trombitas, Principal Hilliard Heritage MS Lauren Schmidt, Principal Hilliard Station Sixth Grade Samantha Althouse, Principal Washington Elementary Stephanie Borlaza, Principal Britton Elementary Shelli Miller, Student Support Services Coordinator

RECOMMENDATION

First Reading October 8, 2018

The Policy Review Committee meets quarterly each school year. All proposed new policies, revisions of current policies or repeal of a current policy are reviewed by the Policy Review Committee before being presented to the Superintendent for submission to the Board of Education. Two readings at two separate meetings shall normally be required before a new or revised policy may be adopted. Action to adopt will take place at a subsequent third meeting. However, the Board does have the option of voting for adoption at the second meeting.

The Policy Review Committee recommends the policies listed below be revised, as noted on the following pages:

- 1. BDDG Minutes
- 2. GA Personnel Policies Goals
- 3. GBI Staff Gifts and Solicitations
- 4. GBIA (Also IGDFA) Online Fundraising Campaigns/Crowdfunding (new policy)
- 5. GCB-1 Professional & Certificated Staff Contracts and Compensation Plans (Teachers)
- 6. GCB-2 Professional & Certificated Staff Contracts and Compensations Plans (Administrators)
- 7. GCD Professional & Certificated Staff Hiring
- 8. IGCF Home Schooling
- 9. IGDF Student Fundraising Activities
- 10. IGDFA (Also GBIA) Online Fundraising Campaigns/Crowdfunding (new policy)
- 11. IGDJ Interscholastic Athletics

Revision Notes:

- Language with a line drawn through it is language to be removed.
- Language in **bold-type** is language to be added.

The policies are being submitted for readings and adoption at the following Board of Education meetings:

- First reading October 8, 2018
- Second reading October 22, 2018
- Third reading and adoption November 12, 2018

MINUTES

The minutes of Board meetings constitute the written record of Board action. Therefore, the Treasurer shall record in the minutes of each meeting all actions taken by the Board.

The minutes of each Board meeting shall include:

- 1. the nature of the meeting (regular or special), the time, the place, members present and the approval of minutes of preceding meeting(s);
- 2. a complete record of all official action taken by the Board relative to all business transacted:
- 3. items of significant information bearing on action and
- 4. record of adjournment.

The Treasurer shall include the motion, the name of the member making the motion, the name of the member seconding it and the record of the vote on the motion.

The minutes shall be signed by the Board President and attested by the Treasurer **as to the accuracy of the information contained**, following their approval by the Board at a subsequent meeting. The attestation is not an authorization of any action taken or not taken during the meeting.

As permitted by law, the reading of the minutes at Board meetings may be waived, provided that copies of the minutes have been distributed to all members of the Board at least two days prior to the date of the next succeeding meeting and that copies of such-minutes are made available to the public and news media.

The approved, official minutes shall be kept the office of the Treasurer who, after they have been read and approved by the Board, shall make them available to interested citizens upon request during normal office hours. Copies of the approved minutes shall be provided at a cost.

[Adoption date: August 14, 2001] [Re-adoption date: May 11, 2015]

LEGAL REFS.:	ORC	121.22
		149.43
		3313.26

CROSS REFS.: BCE, Board Committees BD, School Board Meetings KBA, Public's Right to Know

PERSONNEL POLICIES GOALS

The personnel employed by the Board are a very important resource for effectively conducting a quality educational program. The District's program functions best when it employs highly qualified properly certified or licensed personnel, conducts appropriate staff development activities and establishes policies and working conditions which are conducive to high morale and enable each staff member to make the fullest contribution to District programs and services.

The goals of the personnel program include:

- 1. developing and implementing those strategies and procedures for personnel recruitment, screening and selection which result in employing the best available candidates: those with the highest capabilities, strongest commitment to quality education and greatest probability of effectively implementing the educational program;
- 2. developing a general assignment strategy which makes the greatest contribution to the educational program, and using it as the primary basis for determining staff assignments;
- 3. providing positive programs of staff development designed to contribute both to improvement of the educational program and to each staff member's career development;
- 4. providing for a genuine team approach to education, including staff involvement in planning, decision making and evaluation; and
- 5. developing and using for personnel evaluation positive processes which contribute to the improvement of staff capabilities and assist in making employment decisions.

[Adoption date: August 14, 2001] [Re-adoption date: May 11, 2015]

LEGAL REFS.: ORC 124.11 3313.602 3319.01; 3319.02; 3319.081; 3319.11; 3319.111 Chapter 4117

CROSS REF.: GBB, Staff Involvement in Decision Making (Also ABB)

STAFF GIFTS AND SOLICITATIONS

<u>Gifts</u>

The Board authorizes the expenditure of public funds to purchase meals, refreshments and tokens of appreciation for employees and Board members in the completion of their responsibilities. The Board believes that such expenditures are necessary, on occasion, to further a public purpose in the general operation of the District. Such public purpose includes, but may not be limited to, employee development activities, employee recognition activities and certain routine meetings that may be enhanced by such amenities.

Such expenditures shall be consistent with the Board's purchasing policy and within the appropriation limits established by the Board.

Presentation of gifts to, and the arrangement of social events for, employees leaving the system are governed by the following.

- 1. Each building principal appoints, or employees may volunteer for, a small social committee.
- 2. Any gifts to be presented to departing employees by their respective groups are at the discretion of the group involved.

Travel Vendor Compensation

Any compensation paid by a private travel vendor to a District official or employee, after the official or employee has participated in selecting the vendor to provide a field trip, is considered "public money" and must be returned to the District.

All travel arrangements must be in compliance with District field trip regulations and approved by the Superintendent or his/her designee.

Solicitations

The Superintendent or his/her designee approves all solicitations which are to be permitted in the schools. No organization may solicit funds of staff members in the schools, nor may anyone distribute flyers or other materials related to fund drives through the schools, without the prior approval of the Superintendent or designee.

Employees may not engage in the sale of products to the schools, even if the proceeds of such sales are intended for charitable or civic purposes; no staff member is to collect any money or distribute any fund-raising literature without the expressed approval of the Superintendent/designee.

"Crowdfunding" refers to a campaign to collect typically small amounts of money from a large number of individuals to finance a project or fundraise for a specific cause. Through the use of personal networking, social media platforms, and other Internet based resources, funds are solicited or raised to support a specific campaign or project.

The Board of Education does not permit or sanction the use of crowdfunding for District or specific school programs or activities, including co-curricular and extracurricular activities.

[Adoption date: August 14, 2001] [Re-adoption date: May 11, 2015]

LEGAL REFS.: ORC 117.10 3313.81; 3313.811 3315.15 3329.10

CROSS REFS.: GBIA (Also IGDFA), Online Fundraising Campaigns/Crowdfunding

IGDG, Student Activities Funds Management IICA, Field Trips and Excursions JL, Student Gifts and Solicitations KJ, Advertising in the Schools KJA, Distribution of Nonschool-Sponsored Literature

NEW POLICY

ONLINE FUNDRAISING CAMPAIGNS/CROWDFUNDING

This policy applies to the use of any form of crowdfunding utilizing an online service or websitebased platform for the financial benefit or gain of the District – be it a specific classroom, grade level, department, school, or curricular or extracurricular activity. "Crowdfunding" refers to a campaign to collect typically small amounts of money from a large number of individuals to finance a project or fundraise for a specific cause. Through the use of personal networking, social media platforms, and other Internet based resources, funds are solicited or raised to support a specific campaign or project.

The Board of Education does not permit or sanction the use of crowdfunding for District or specific school programs or activities, including co-curricular and extracurricular activities.

[Adoption date:]

LEGAL REFS.: Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act; 20 USC Section 1232g ORC 9.38 2921.43 3313.51 3319.321

CROSS REFS.: GBCA, Staff Conflict of Interest GBI, Staff Gifts and Solicitations IGDF, Student Fundraising Activities KH, Public Gifts to the District KI, Public Solicitations in the Schools

File: GCB-1

PROFESSIONAL AND CERTIFICATED STAFF CONTRACTS AND COMPENSATION PLANS (Teachers)

The Board believes that a fair teacher compensation plan, which includes an adequate base salary, increments and employee benefits, is necessary to attract and hold highly qualified retain properly certified or licensed employees to provide the quality educational program it desires in its schools.

As required by law, the Board must give written notice of its intent not to re-employ on or before June 1 and notice of annual salary is given to each certificated/licensed employee by July 1.

[Adoption date: August 14, 2001] [Re-adoption date: December 11, 2001] [Re-adoption date: May 12, 2008] [Re-adoption date: July 9, 2013] [Re-adoption date: May 11, 2015]

LEGAL REFS.: ORC 3313.53 3317.13; 3317.14 3319.07; 3319.08; 3319.09; 3319.10; 3319.11; 3319.111; 3319.12; 3319.22; 3319.24; 3319.26

CROSS REFS.: GCBA, Professional and Certificated Staff Salary Schedules GCBB, Professional and Certificated Staff Supplemental Contracts GCBC, Professional and Certificated Staff Fringe Benefits GCBD, Professional and Certificated Staff Leaves and Absences GCBE, Professional Staff Vacations and Holidays

CONTRACT REF.: Teachers' Negotiated Agreement

PROFESSIONAL AND CERTIFICATED STAFF CONTRACTS AND COMPENSATION PLANS (Administrators)

Fair compensation plans are necessary in order to attract and hold highly qualified retain properly certified or licensed administrators to provide and manage a quality educational program.

The Board may establish a salary schedule for its administrators, with the exception that the salary of the Superintendent/CEO is usually determined by the employee contract. Notice of annual salary is given to each administrator by July 1.

All administrators shall be issued written limited contracts. The contract specifies the administrative position and duties, the salary and other compensation to be paid for performance of such duties, the number of days to be worked, the number of days of vacation leave and any paid holidays in the contractual year.

The term of the administrator's contract will not exceed three years, except that an individual who has been employed as an administrator for three years or more shall be entitled to receive a contract of not fewer than two nor more than five years. The Superintendent/CEO may recommend employment of an individual who has served as an administrator in the District for three years or more under a one-year administrative contract once during such individual's administrative career in the District.

An administrator who has earned teacher tenure in the District retains such status while serving as administrator. Any administrator who previously obtained teacher tenure in another district achieves teacher tenure in the District after re-employment with two or more years' experience as an administrator in the District.

The Superintendent's/CEO's recommendation is considered in all contract renewals. All administrators are evaluated annually. In the year an administrator's contract does not expire, the evaluation is completed and a written copy is given to the administrator no later than the end of the administrator's contract year as defined by his/her salary notice.

In the year an administrator's contract does expire, two evaluations are completed: one preliminary and one final. The preliminary evaluation is conducted at least 60 days prior to any Board action on the employee's contract, and a written copy of the preliminary evaluation is given to the administrator at this time.

The final evaluation includes the Superintendent's/CEO's intended recommendation for the employee's contract. A written copy of the final evaluation must be provided to the employee at least five days prior to the Board's action to renew or nonrenew the employee's contract. If the Board fails to take action on the expiring contract, then the administrator is renewed. If the administrator has been in the District for two years or less, he/she will receive a one-year contract. If the administrator has been in the District three years or more, he/she will receive a two-year contract.

Before June 1, any administrator whose contract expires at the end of the school year is notified by the Board of the date on which the contract expires and of the individual's right to request a meeting with the Board in executive session to discuss the reasons for considering renewal or nonrenewal of his/her contract. Also prior to June 1 of the year in which the employment contract expires, any administrator whom the Board intends to nonrenew receives written notification of the Board's intent not to re-employ.

The Board may request an alternative administrative license valid for employing a superintendent or any other administrator, consistent with State law.

[Adoption date: August 14, 2001] [Re-adoption date: December 11, 2001] [Re-adoption date: May 12, 2008] [Re-adoption date: July 9, 2013] [Re-adoption date: May 11, 2015]

LEGAL REFS.: ORC 3319.01; 3319.02; 3319.111; 3319.12; 3319.225; 3319.27 4117.01 OAC 3301-24-11; 3301-24-12

CROSS REFS.: GCBA, Professional and Certificated Staff Salary Schedules GCBB, Professional and Certificated Staff Supplemental Contracts GCBC, Professional and Certificated Staff Fringe Benefits GCBD, Professional and Certificated Staff Leaves and Absences GCBE, Professional Staff Vacations and Holidays

PROFESSIONAL AND CERTIFICATED STAFF HIRING

The Superintendent/designee determines the District's personnel needs and recommends to the Board qualified properly certified or licensed candidates for employment . Through recruiting and evaluation procedures, the Superintendent/designee recruits and recommends to the Board the employment and retention of personnel.

It is the duty of the Superintendent/designee to see that persons nominated for employment in the schools meet all certification requirements and the requirements of the Board for the type of position for which the nomination is made.

The following guidelines are used in the selection of personnel.

- 1. There is no unlawful discrimination in the hiring process.
- 2. The quality of instruction is enhanced by a staff with diverse backgrounds, educational preparation and previous experience. Concerted efforts are made to maintain a variation in the staff.
- 3. Interviewing and selection procedures ensure that the administrator who is directly responsible for the work of a staff member has an opportunity to aid in the selection process. The final recommendation to the Board is made by the Superintendent or by another individual designated by the Board in the event that the Superintendent's nomination would create an unlawful interest in a public contract.
- 4. No candidate is hired without an interview and a criminal records check.
- 5. All candidates are considered on the basis of their merits, qualifications and the needs of the District. In each instance, the Superintendent/designee and others having a role in the selection process seek to recommend the best qualified applicant for the job.

6. All candidates for teaching positions must be properly certified or licensed.

While the Board may accept or reject a nomination, an appointment is valid only if made with the recommendation of the Superintendent or by another individual designated by the Board in the event that the Superintendent's nomination would create an unlawful interest in a public contract. In the case of a rejection, it is the duty of the Superintendent to make another nomination.

Employment of Retired Administrators

The Board recognizes that recruiting and retaining highly qualified properly certified or licensed administrative personnel has become increasingly difficult in Ohio's competitive marketplace. Therefore the Board will, under appropriate circumstances, offer to enter into administrative employment agreements with qualified retired administrators whenever practical and when such action appears to be in the best interests of the District. Retired administrators may be employed as administrators on a part-time or full-time basis.

For purposes of this policy, a "retired administrator" is an individual who has retired pursuant to STRS or SERS rules and regulations.

Rehiring of Retirees

If an employee is retiring and seeks re-employment in the same position, then public notice must be given 60 days prior to the date re-employment is to begin. The notice must state that the person is or will be retired and is seeking re-employment in the District. The notice must include the time, date and location of a public meeting, which must take place 15 to 30 days prior to employment.

[Adoption date: August 14, 2001] [Re-adoption date: December 11, 2001] [Re-adoption date: November 11, 2003] [Re-adoption date: March 9, 2004] [Re-adoption date: February 10, 2014] [Re-adoption date: May 11, 2015]

LEGAL REFS.: The Elementary and Secondary Education Act; 20 USC 1221 et seq. Fair Credit Reporting Act; 15 USC 1681 et seq. ORC 2921.42 3307.01; 3307.353 3313.53 3319.02; 3319.07; **3319.074;** 3319.08; **3319.088;** 3319.11; 3319.22 through 3319.31; **3319.39** 3319.39 3323.06 OAC 3301-35-05; 3301-35-06 3307:1-13-03

File: GCD

CROSS REFS.: AC, Nondiscrimination

ACA, Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex

ACB, Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability

GBA, Equal Opportunity Employment

GBQ, Criminal Records Check

GDD, Classified Staff Hiring

HOME SCHOOLING

The Superintendent/designee may excuse from compulsory school attendance, for not more than one school year at a time, any school-age child who is being home schooled in accordance with the State Board of Education rules in the Ohio Administrative Code.

The child being home schooled must be instructed by an individual with one of the following qualifications:

- 1. a high school diploma;
- 2. a certificate of high school equivalence;
- 3. standardized test scores that demonstrate high school equivalence or
- 4. other credentials found appropriate by the Superintendent.

Lacking the above, the home teacher must work under the direction of a person holding a baccalaureate degree.

Any request to be excused must be made in writing by the parent(s) and must contain the information required by the Ohio Administrative Code.

The Superintendent/designee shall approve the home schooling request, unless he/she determines that the information required by the Ohio Administrative Code has not been provided or unless he/she has substantial evidence that the minimum educational requirements of the Ohio Administrative Code have not been met, despite the fact that the required information has been provided by the parent(s).

If the Superintendent/designee intends to deny the request for home schooling, he/she notifies the parent(s) within 14 calendar days and informs the parent(s) of the reasons for the intent to deny the request and of the parent(s)' right to a due process hearing before the Superintendent/designee.

Upon substantial evidence of cessation of home schooling in accordance with the Ohio Administrative Code, the Superintendent/designee notifies the parent(s) of the intent to revoke the excuse and of the parent(s)' right to a due process hearing before the Superintendent/designee.

Although students choosing home schooling are not the direct responsibility of the Hilliard City Schools, the Board and staff share an interest in their education; therefore, the District will permit students receiving home schooling access to certain services from the District as follows:

Elementary Level, Grades K-5

- 1. Enrollment on a part-time basis all school year, with a minimum of two subject areas.
- 2. Home schooled students who are enrolled on a part-time basis may participate in field trips or cocurricular activities related to the courses or subject areas for which they are enrolled.

Secondary Level, Grades 6-12

- 1. May enroll on a part-time basis all school year, with a minimum of two courses/units generating a total of two credits per year and a maximum of 4 courses/units.
- 2. Home schooled students who are enrolled on a part-time basis may participate in field trips or cocurricular activities related to the courses or subject areas for which they are enrolled.
- 3. Athletic eligibility will be determined by OHSSA guidelines and the District's athletic policy.

Students enrolling part-time must be residents of the District and follow regular school enrollment requirements, comply with and be held accountable to the District student code of conduct and be in accordance with the District "Home Schooling Regulations" (IGCF-R)

[Adoption date: August 14, 2001] [Re-adoption date: December 11, 2001] [Re-adoption date: October 8, 2012] [Re-adoption date: November 25, 2013] [Re-adoption date: May 11, 2015]

LEGAL REFS.: ORC 3321.04 OAC Chapter 3301-34

CROSS REFS.: IGDJ, Interscholastic Athletics JECBC, Admission of Students from Nonchartered or Home Schooling JEG, Exclusions and Exemptions from School Attendance

2 of 2

STUDENT FUND-RAISING ACTIVITIES

The Board believes in providing opportunities for students to participate through cocurricular activities in fund-raising projects which contribute to their educational growth and which do not conflict with the instructional program. The Ohio Revised Code and the Auditor's office mandate careful accounting of the receipt and expenditure of such funds, therefore all fiscal operations of student groups must be in compliance with the following guidelines. All such related activities must be:

- 1. conducted by a recognized student group for the purpose of contributing to educational objectives;
- 2. appropriate to the age or grade level;
- 3. activities in which schools may appropriately engage;
- 4. conducted under the supervision of teachers, advisors or administrators;
- 5. conducted in such a manner and at such times as not to encroach upon instructional time or interfere with regularly scheduled school classes and activities;
- 6. scheduled so as not to be unduly demanding on secretarial, teacher and principal time or work;
- 7. evaluated annually by teachers, advisors, administrators and students;
- 8. limited in number so as not to become a burden or nuisance to the community and
- 9. sensitive to direct competition with fund-raising efforts sponsored by recognized groups and organizations within the community.

The application of the above criteria for student sales and activities is supervised by the building principal with the approval of the Treasurer/designee. Each principal submits to the Treasurer/designee a list of the proposed sales or fund drives which the school plans to conduct during the school year and the purpose for which the funds are going to be used. The Treasurer/designee then indicates his/her approval or disapproval within the limitations of the above criteria.

"Crowdfunding" refers to a campaign to collect typically small amounts of money from a large number of individuals to finance a project or fundraise for a specific cause. Through

1 of 2

the use of personal networking, social media platforms, and other Internet based resources, funds are solicited or raised to support a specific campaign or project.

The Board of Education does not permit or sanction the use of crowdfunding for District or specific school programs or activities, including co-curricular and extracurricular activities.

Funds derived from approved student fund-raising activities are handled by the Treasurer's office in accordance with the State Auditor's requirements.

[Adoption date: August 14, 2001] [Re-adoption date: January 24, 2005] [Re-adoption date: May 11, 2015]

LEGAL REFS.: ORC 3313.51; 3313.53; 3313.811 3315.062

CROSS REFS.: **GBIA (Also IGDFA), Online Fundraising Campaigns/Crowdfunding** IGD, Cocurricular and Extracurricular Activities IGDG, Student Activities Funds Management IICA, Field Trips JL, Student Gifts and Solicitations

NEW POLICY

ONLINE FUNDRAISING CAMPAIGNS/CROWDFUNDING

This policy applies to the use of any form of crowdfunding utilizing an online service or websitebased platform for the financial benefit or gain of the District – be it a specific classroom, grade level, department, school, or curricular or extracurricular activity. "Crowdfunding" refers to a campaign to collect typically small amounts of money from a large number of individuals to finance a project or fundraise for a specific cause. Through the use of personal networking, social media platforms, and other Internet based resources, funds are solicited or raised to support a specific campaign or project.

The Board of Education does not permit or sanction the use of crowdfunding for District or specific school programs or activities, including co-curricular and extracurricular activities.

[Adoption date:]

LEGAL REFS.: Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act; 20 USC Section 1232g ORC 9.38 2921.43 3313.51 3319.321

CROSS REFS.: GBCA, Staff Conflict of Interest GBI, Staff Gifts and Solicitations IGDF, Student Fundraising Activities KH, Public Gifts to the District KI, Public Solicitations in the Schools

INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETICS

Participation by students in athletic competition is a privilege subject to Board policies and regulations. While the school community takes great pride in winning, it emphasizes and requires good sportsmanship and positive mental attitude as a prerequisite to participation.

The Superintendent/designee and administrative staff schedule meetings with all coaches and athletic directors to develop a comprehensive approach to physical education and athletics throughout the District and to maintain a program that is an educational activity.

Interscholastic programs are subject to approval by the Board. The athletic director in conjunction with the building principal is responsible for the administration of the interscholastic athletic program within his/her school. In fulfilling this responsibility, the principal consults with the athletic directors and coaches on various aspects of the interscholastic athletic program. It is the responsibility of the athletic director/principal and their staff to ensure the proper management of all athletic and physical education programs and the safety of students and the public.

The Board may require that students pay fees to participate in an extracurricular activity.

Coaches are required to complete all approved coursework as specified by State law, the Ohio High School Athletic Association (OHSAA) and the Ohio Department of Education (ODE) in order to qualify to serve as a coach.

In the conduct of interscholastic athletic programs, the rules, regulations and limitations outlined by the OHSAA must be followed. It is the responsibility of the District's voting delegate to OHSAA to advise the management team of all pending changes in OHSAA's regulations.

Eligibility requirements for participating in athletic programs must conform to regulations of the OHSAA. In order to be eligible, students must have passed five credits that count toward graduation during the prior grading period. The five credits may be a combination of high school and college courses. The requirements also include that a student have the written permission of his/her parent(s) and shall have been determined as physically fit for the chosen sport by a licensed physician.

All students participating in interscholastic athletics must be covered by insurance. This insurance may be available for purchase through the District. If parents choose not to purchase insurance provided by the District, the parent(s) must sign a waiver ensuring that private coverage is provided.

As character building is one of the major objectives of interscholastic athletics, the athlete assumes responsibility for regulating his/her personal life in such ways as make him/her a worthy representative of his/her school.

Any student may be suspended from an athletic team practice and competition for a period of time, designated by the principal, for infraction of school rules and regulations or for any other unacceptable conduct in or out of school.

Students in grades 9-12 are ineligible eligible for athletics for the first 50% of the maximum allowable regular season contests in the sports the student participated in during the 12 months immediately preceding the transfer, and are ineligible for the remainder of the regular season contests and ineligible to participate in OHSAA tournaments in these sports until the one-year anniversary date of enrollment in the school to which the student transferred-to. If the transfer takes place during the sport season in which a student has participated in a regular season interscholastic contest, the student is ineligible for the remainder of that sport's season and the student must finish fulfilling his/her transfer consequence, for only that sport in which the mid-season transfer occurred, at the commencement of the sport season contests until the total number of regular season contests missed (including those missed during the previous season) equals 50% of the maximum allowable regular season contests in that sport. Exceptions to the ineligibility provisions are outlined in the OHSAA Bylaws.

Resident students enrolled in community schools are permitted to participate in the District's interscholastic athletics program at the school to which the student would be assigned. Students must be of the appropriate age and grade level as determined by the Superintendent, and must fulfill the same academic, nonacademic and financial requirements as any other participant.

Resident students attending STEM and STEAM schools are not prohibited from participating in the District's interscholastic athletics program and must fulfill the same academic, nonacademic and financial requirements as any other participant.

Resident students attending a nonpublic school are permitted to participate in the District's interscholastic athletic programs at the school to which the student would be assigned if the nonpublic school the student is enrolled in does not offer the activity. Students must be of the appropriate age and grade level as determined by the Superintendent and must fulfill the same academic, nonacademic and financial requirements as any other participant.

Resident students receiving home instruction in accordance with State law are permitted to participate in the District's interscholastic athletic programs at the school to which the student would be assigned. Students must be of the appropriate age and grade level as determined by the Superintendent and must fulfill the same academic, nonacademic and financial requirements as any other participant.

Foreign exchange students enrolled in a recognized visitor exchange program may be eligible to participate in interscholastic athletics in accordance with OHSAA Bylaws.

[Adoption date: August 14, 2001] [Re-adoption date: January 24, 2005] [Re-adoption date: May 12, 2008] [Re-adoption date: October 8, 2012] [Re-adoption date: April 22, 2013] [Re-adoption date: November 25, 2013] [Re-adoption date: May 11, 2015] [Re-adoption date: August 8, 2016] [Re-adoption date: March 12, 2018]

LEGAL REFS.: ORC 2305.23; 2305.231 3313.537; 3313.5311; 3313.5312; 3313.539; 3313.66; 3313.661; 3313.664 3315.062 3319.303 3321.04 3707.52 OAC Chapter 3301-27

CROSS REFS.: IGCF, Home Schooling IGD, Cocurricular and Extracurricular Activities IGDK, Interscholastic Extracurricular Eligibility IKF, Graduation Requirements JECBA, Admission of Exchange Students JECBC, Admission of Students from State-Chartered, Nonchartered or Home Schooling JGD, Student Suspension JGE, Student Expulsion JN, Student Fees, Fines and Charges Student Handbooks